
Page 1 of 2 
 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING  
KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
Meeting Date:      Wednesday, March 12, 2025 
Time:        5:30 p.m. 
Location:       District Administration Building   
Remote Viewing Access:     https://bit.ly/3F1oV3k 
Remote Public Comment Sign-Up Form:  https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk 
Interpretación al español estará disponible.  
 

AGENDA  
 

1. Call to Order – 5:30 PM       GABE GALBRAITH 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Special Recognition  
A. National Board Certified Teachers  DR. TOM BRILLHART 
B. Education Support Professionals Week DR. TRACI PIERCE 
C. Association of Washington School Principals (AWSP) Assistant Principal of 

the Year 
 
4. Communications from Parents, Staff, and District Residents 
 
5. Consent Items 
 Approval of Board Minutes 

A. Minutes of School Board Study Session February 26, 2025 
B. Minutes of School Board Meeting February 26, 2025 

 
Human Resources Reports  
A. Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 

 
 Business Office Items 

A. Budget Status Report Ending December 31, 2024 
B. Payroll and Vouchers Ending December 31, 2024 
C. Removal and Authorization of Account Signers 

 
6. Communications Follow-up 

 
7. Superintendent/Board Member Report 
 
8. Reports and Discussions 

A. Preliminary Budget 2025- 2026  DR. TOM BRILLHART 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2F3F1oV3k&data=05%7C02%7Cpatty.lord%40ksd.org%7Ceded9a4b76264ecd29f008dd5b5104c3%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638767125710515293%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=yGBYST8deS31FiSkXdp0f6I0qzCgsOMtZGVA9%2FD2s7o%3D&reserved=0
https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk


KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
DR. TRACI PIERCE 
SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 

Page 2 of 2 

B. Academic Progress Update  ALYSSA ST. HILAIRE 
C. Preliminary Recommendation: K-5 English Language Arts Materials 
D. Legislative Update  DR. TRACI PIERCE 

 
9. Unfinished Business 

None 
 

10. New Business 
None 

  
11. Next Meeting Agenda 

A. Preliminary Budget 2025 – 2026 
B. Asset Preservation/Capital Projects Update 
C. Recommendation: K-5 English Language Arts Materials  
D. Recommendation: K-12 Physical Education Materials  

 
12. Executive Session (Approximately 30 minutes) 

A. Per RCW 42.30.110 (1) (i) Legal Issue 
 

13. Other Business as Authorized by Law 
 
14. Adjourn 

 
 



 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING STUDY SESSION 

 Administration Building  
February 26, 2025 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members: Micah Valentine, Vice President of the Board; Brittany Gledhill, 
Legislative Representative of the Board; Dr. Josh Miller, Board Member; and Dr. Traci 
Pierce, Superintendent and Secretary of the Board.  

 
Cabinet Members: Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education; Alyssa St. 
Hilaire, Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning; Dr. Thomas Brillhart, 
Assistant Superintendent of Operations; Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of 
Communications and Public Relations; and Eric Veach, Executive Director of 
Information Technology.  
 
Excused:  Gabe Galbraith, Board President 
  Mike Connors, Board Member 
 
Other Guest(s): Ron Mabry, State Board of Education Member – Eastern Washington 
Position 1 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Vice President Micah Valentine called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m. and led the 

Pledge of Allegiance with approximately nine online and in-person staff and guests. 
   
STUDY SESSION:   
 

• State Board of Education Updates and Discussion 
• Vision for Alternative Programs 

 
OTHER BUSINESS AS AUTHORIZED BY LAW 
 
 There being no further business, Micah Valentine adjourned the meeting at 5:04 p.m. 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
Approved: March 12, 2025 



 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 Administration Building 
February 26, 2025 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members:  Gabe Galbraith, President of the Board; Micah Valentine, Vice 
President of the Board; Brittany Gledhill, Legislative Representative of the Board; Dr. 
Josh Miller, Board Member; Mike Connors, Board Member; Annie Maltos, Student 
Representative to the Board; and Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent and Secretary of the 
Board.  

 
Student Representative-Elect: Diego Anguiano 
 
Cabinet Members: Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education; Alyssa St. 
Hilaire, Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning; Dr. Thomas Brillhart, 
Assistant Superintendent of Operations; Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of 
Communications and Public Relations; and Eric Veach, Executive Director of 
Information Technology.  
 
Other Guest(s): Paul Brachvogel, District Legal Counsel 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Vice President Micah Valentine called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and led the 

Pledge of Allegiance with approximately 18 online and in-person staff and guests. 
 
 Dr. Josh Miller made a motion to excuse Gabe Galbraith, who will be arriving late. 
  
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Dr. Miller  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 4-0. 
 
RECOGNITION 
 
 National Board-Certified Teachers 

 
Dr. Thomas Brillhart, Assistant Superintendent of Operations, recognized newly certified 
National Board-Certified teachers, highlighting the rigorous process and the benefits to 
teachers and students. The following teachers were recognized: Jessica Bydalek, Amy 
Payson, and Christi Young. 

 
 Gabe Galbraith arrived at 5:35 p.m. 
 
  
Career and Technical Education Month 



Minutes 
February 26, 2025 
Page 2 
 
 
 

Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce presented information on Kennewick School District’s 
Career and Technical Education offerings. She read a proclamation from President Donald 
J. Trump designating February as Career and Technical Education (CTE) Month. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM PARENTS, STAFF, AND RESIDENTS 
  
 None  
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 Motion by Gabe Galbraith to approve the consent items as presented. 
  
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Dr. Miller  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 The consent items were as follows: 
 

• Minutes of Regular School Board Meeting February 12, 2025 
• Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
• Contract Addendum: Superintendent of Schools 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FOLLOW-UP 
 

 None  
 
SUPERINTENDENT/BOARD MEMBER REPORT 
 
 Student Representative to the Board Annie Maltos shared that in recognition of CTE 

tonight, she wanted to highlight that she started her internship through the Teaching 
Academy at Ridgeview Elementary. 

 
 Superintendent Pierce shared that she recently presented a state of the district update at 

the Tri-City Hispanic Chamber. She also shared that since the last Board meeting, she has 
visited Washington, Sunset View, and Westgate and attended the Amazing Shake at 
Hawthorne. Dr. Pierce announced that Kennewick School District was approved as a 
partner site for the WEA Apprenticeship Residency in Teaching Program. 

  
 Board Member Mike Connors reported attending the Amazing Shake at Hawthorne 

Elementary. He shared that he would love to see the Amazing Shake program expand to 
other schools. In recognition of CTE month, Mr. Connors shared that his son is in his second 
year at Tri-Tech. He stated that his son loves the program and now wants to attend a trade 
school.  



Minutes 
February 26, 2025 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 Board Member Josh Miller shared that he is looking into potentially organizing a 

Kennewick Schools Foundation. It would be a non-profit foundation separate from the 
Board that would provide avenues for the community to be more involved with our school's 
needs.  

 
 Board Member Brittany Gledhill highlighted that she attended the Gesa Carousel of Dreams 

Board Meeting, where they awarded their KSD student staff members for their grades. She 
also shared that she listened to the WSSDA Legislative update, attended the ELA 
Curriculum adoption meeting, and attended the Amazing Shake at Hawthorne. Ms. Gledhill 
gave a legislative update to the Board members on transportation, MSOC, and Special 
Education bills. 

 
 Board Member Micah Valentine reported he was invited to speak at Career Day with the 

Big Bro Joe Foundation.  
 
 President Gabe Galbraith reported that he has been following legislative developments and 

discussing them with other Board members throughout the state. He shared that he discussed 
the boys' swim with community members and attended Vista’s Orchestra recital. 

 
REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  
 
 2024 – 2025 Budget Update 
  

Dr. Tom Brillhart, Assistant Superintendent of Operations, presented the projected 
student enrollment for the school year 2024-25 at 18,681 students compared to 18,495 
budgeted. The increased head count of 186 students was primarily due to a rise in the 
Running Start program and a combination of an increase in FTE grades K-12 totaling 48 
FTE students. Projected revenues and historical and projected utility and liability 
insurance costs were reviewed for the school year 2024-25. He shared that the district 
will have more information for projecting revenues and expenditures for the school year 
2025-26 after the legislative session ends on April 27.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None 
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 May Board Meeting Date Changes 
 
 Motion by Dr. Miller to approve changing the May School Board Meetings from May 14 

and 28 to May 7 and 21. 
 

 Advisory Vote: Annie Maltos  Yes 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 



Minutes 
February 26, 2025 
Page 4 
 
 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Dr. Miller  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0 
 
NEXT MEETING AGENDA 
 
 The Board reviewed items for the next meeting agenda:  
 

A. 2025-26 Preliminary Budget 
B. Legislative Update 
C. Academic Progress Update 
D. Preliminary Recommendation: K-5 English Language Arts Materials 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 President Gabe Galbraith announced an end to the business portion of the meeting at 6:19 

p.m. He moved the Board into executive session per RCW 42.30.110 (b and c) Real Estate 
and (i) Legal Issue for approximately 40 minutes and noted that no further formal action 
would be taken. The Executive Session started at 7:05 p.m. Mr. Galbraith extended the 
executive session for an additional 10 minutes. 

 
  
OTHER BUSINESS AS AUTHORIZED BY LAW. 
 
 There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 7:15 p.m.  
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
 
Approved: March 12, 2025 



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Exhibit A: Lists new employment contracts, requests for leaves of absence, and terminations which have occurred for certificated 
employees since the last meeting of the Board of Directors.

Name School Position Justification FTE Date

Jazmiri Sanchez 
Vargas Fuerza Teacher - Elem Requesting LOA 1.0

Eff. 5/22-
8/20/25

Nicole Yost KeHS Teacher - HS Requesting .40 LOA 1.0 to .60 2025-26

Haley Poznanski Canyon View Teacher - Elem Requesting LOA 1.0
Eff. 4/5- 
8/11/25

Marilee Johnson Special Services Psychologist Requesting .20 LOA 1.0 to .80 2025-26
Jennifer Wright KaHS Teacher - HS Requesting LOA 1.0 2025-26
Todd Hardy Special Services Psychologist Requesting .20 LOA 1.0 to .80 2025-26

Lynnette Gunter Park MS Instructional Coach 1.0 8/20/2025
Tim Bisson SrHS Teacher - HS 1.0 8/20/2025
Cheryl Yoke HHHMS Teacher - MS 1.0 8/20/2025
Joan Marble Amon Creek Teacher - Elem 1.0 8/31/2025
Cynthia Steinborn Horse Heave Hills Teacher - MS 1.0 8/31/2025

Traci Pierce
Administration 
Center Superintendent 1.0 6/30/2025

Diane Okerman KeHS Teacher - HS 1.0 3/5/2025RESIGNATIONS

DATE: Wednesday, March 12, 2025

EXHIBIT A 

NEW POSITONS

REHIRE

REPLACEMENT

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
REPLACEMENT

RETIREMENTS

3/12/2025 Page 1



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

IN DISTRICT 
TRANSFERS

3/12/2025 Page 2



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Name School Position Justification Hours Date

Ganesa Cobb Amon Creek Para/SS/Tier II Autism Program need 6 3/7/2025

Seth Valdez Washington Para/SS/Tier III Autism Program need 6.5 3/10/2025

Stephanie Perez Kamiakin
High School Attendance 

Secretary/Bilingual

Replaces Maria Edeza 

Contreras
5.5 2/25/2025

Jacy Del Carlo Kennewick Para/SS/Tier III Autism 1-1 Replaces Ellie Chavez 6.5 3/3/2025

Anne Simmons Sunset View Para/SS/Tier II Autism
Replaces Stewart 

Maxwell
6.0 3/3/2025

Perla Valdivia Amistad Para/FP/BE/Bilingual Replaces Rosa Pacheco 6.0 3/10/2025

Quinn House Transportation Bus Driver 4.92 3/4/2025

Isaac Lopez Washington Custodian/Swing
Replaces Somboun 

Sisayaket
8.0 3/7/2025

Lidia Mino Chinook Lead Secretary Replaces Cathy Dickey 8.0 4/7/2025

Providence Maxwell Washington Para/FP/LAP Replace Janie Salisbury 6.0 3/10/2025

Thomas Butler Transportation Bus Driver To sub bus driver 5.0 2/27/2025

Alycia Silverthorn Southgate Para/FP/LAP/BE 6.25 3/14/2025

Windy Phelps Vista Para/SS/Tier II Behavior 6.0 3/28/2025

Kara Stevens Sunset View Para/BE/Temporary To sub para 6.0 3/11/2025

Mariah Kensey Transportation Bus Driver To sub bus driver 4.92 3/11/2025

Elizabeth Diaz Highlands Para/FP/Bilingual Req 6.0 3/6/2025

Darron Veazey Transportation Bus Driver 4.92 3/7/2025

Brandy Scott Business Office ASB/Receipting Secretary 8.0 3/6/2025

Kayla Fredeen Kamiakin Para/SS/Tier II Autism Until 4/7/25 6.0 3/14/2025

Debra Huston Transportation Bus Attendant 3.75 8/20/2025

Steve Melichar Facilities Services Electrician 8.0 6/30/2025

Melanie Hall Desert Hills 6/30/2025

Monica Jackson Park Cook 6.0 8/20/2025

RETURN FROM LOA

REPLACEMENT

REHIRE

TERMINATION

RESIGNED FROM LOA

RESIGNATION

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

RETIREMENT

NEW POSITIONS

EXHIBIT B: Lists new employment personnel actions and terminations for classified employees that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board of Directors

EXHIBIT B

DATE: March 12, 2025

3/6/2025 AM



Page 1 
 

 
EXTRACURRICULAR 

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS 
Exhibit C:  Lists new employment contracts and terminations that have occurred for supplemental contracts since the last meeting of the Board of Directors. 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   Wednesday, March 12, 2025 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS 

ELECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS 
NAME SCHOOL POSITION JUSTIFICATION HOURS DATE 

NEW POSITIONS      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Dawson Slater Asst Track Coach Southridge HS Replaces Ray Stayrook    

2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Ken Lattin Asst Baseball Desert Hills MS Replaces Bart Miller – 1 year LOA (Emerg Hire)  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Jaron Sprong Asst Baseball Chinook MS Replaces Robert Clark - Resigned  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Oliver Browning Asst Baseball Horse Heaven Hills MS Replaces Carter Evans – Resigned – (Emerg Hire)  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Cade Puckett Asst Baseball Horse Heaven Hills MS Due to Numbers – (Emerg Hire)  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Madison Harrell Asst Softball Horse Heaven Hills MS Replaces Aubrey Haskell – (Emerg Hire)  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Judith Brown Asst Track Park MS Replaces Florcence Ardon - Resigned   2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Alex Kohan Asst Golf Kamiakin HS Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Tim Bisson Asst Softball Chinook MS Emergency Hire – Moved from Head Coach  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
  Ryan McCallum Head Softball Chinook MS Emergenyc Hire – Moved from Asst Coach  2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Savannah Allmett Asst Softball Chinook MS Emergency Hire – Due to numbers  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Joanna Inabnit Head Girls Track Highlands MS Emergency Hire – Moved from Asst Coach  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Renee Kitchen Asst Track Highlands MS Emergency Hire – Replaces Neena Fouts - Retired  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Ben Schuldheisz Head Softball Desert Hills MS Emergency Hire – Replaces Wren - LOA  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Shannon O’Laughlin Assist Music-Strings Kamiakin HS Open Position  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Cadence Jones Asst Track Chinook MS Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Mark Dalbeck Asst Track Highlands MS Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Lucas Castilleja Asst Baseball Highlands MS Emergency Hire - .25 FTE – Took .25-Wensveen  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Daniela Ramirez Asst Softball Horse Heaven Hills MS Emgegency Hire – Replaces Railyn Davis  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Seth Keller Asst Baseball Chinook MS Replaces Ryley Kasma - Resigned  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

 Darian Brown Asst Tennis Kennewick HS Emergency Hire - Replaces Imelda Buckingham  2024-2025 Sc Yr 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS DATE 
 Bart Miller Desert Hills MS Assistant Baseball One Year LOA 2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Travis Aerts Park MS Assistant Baseball One Year LOA 2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Kate Hawk Park MS Assistant Softball One Year LOA 2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Matt Thoelke Highlands MS Assistant Track One Year LOA 2024-2025 Sc Yr 
 Denise Wren Desert Hills MS Head Softball One Year LOA 2024-2025 Sc Yr 
RESIGNATIONS NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS   

 Ardon, Florence PARK MS Asst Track Resigned 2024-25 Sc Yr 

      

































 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:  March 12, 2025 

To:  Board of Directors 

Cc:  Dr. Traci Pierce  

From:  Brandon Lord, Director of Business Services 

RE: Removal and Authorization of Account Signers (Self Insured) 

 

The authorized signers on Kennewick School District #17 Self Insured account (2606091711) at Banner  
Bank requires updating. Current signers are Dave Bond, Vic Roberts, Marty Rose, Lisa McMahon, Lisa 
Vivan and Stacey Brown. 
 
Board authorization is required to remove current signers and authorize the following new signers: 
Dr. Thomas Brillhart, Brandon Lord, Cindy Weigel and Wanda Roberson.   
 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Recommendation:  
 
The Board authorize the removal of current signers and authorize the following new signers: Dr. Thomas  
Brillhart, Brandon Lord, Cindy Weigel and Wanda Roberson.   
 

 



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: March 12, 2025 

 

 

 

Topic General Fund 2024-25 and 2025-26 Preliminary Budget Information  
Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
X 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

Preliminary General Fund budget information is part of cycle of annual budget 
updates/presentations for the Board. The goal of the presentation is to inform the Board 
of the prelinary status of the 2025-26 General Fund budget and highlight some key 
information from the current legislative session.   
 

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
X Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

 System accountability  
X Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Are there concerns or questions regarding the 2024-25 General Fund budget and the 
preliminary 2025-26 budget information? 

Next Steps  • The Board will receive budget presentations throughout the months of March, April, 
and May. The Board will hold a public hearing and vote to formally adopt the budget 
on June 18, 2025. 
 



General Fund 2024-25 
and 

Preliminary Budget Information 2025-26 

March 12, 2025



Topic 
Overview 

2



Presentation Outline 

• Legislative Session: Potential Funding/Budget 
Impacts

• 2024-25 Budget
• 2025-26 Anticipated Revenue and Expenditure 

Changes
• 2025-26 Budget Process and Timeline



• April 27, 2025 - End Date for Legislative Session

• Potential Funding/Budget Impacts
o Implicit Price Deflator (IPD) - estimating 2.4%
o Employer paid benefit rate changes

 Retirement rate – employer share 
 Medical insurance per state-funded staff - expected increase from 

$14,136 per year to ?????
o Materials, Supplies, and Operating Costs (MSOC) 

 Per student inflationary increase (current legislative bills at 3%)
o Special education multiplier changes 

• OSPI funding models will be adjusted after session ends
• District can project but not finalize revenue and wage/benefit cost until 

OSPI funding models are updated

4

Legislative Session



5



6

Preliminary Basic Ed/Local Revenue Changes
School Year 2025-26

Revenue Source (Basic Ed/Local Funded) Increases
Projected
Change

March 12

Basic Ed Enrollment (FTE)  - trending expected decrease for 2025-26 SY vs 2024-25 actual $(300,000) 

Amounts to 
be updated 

when 
legislative 
session 

information 
is finalized.

Special Education Enrollment - decrease for 2024-25 SY (60 less) vs budget- still determining 
trends for 2025-26 SY- assume decrease ??

Special Education Formula Adjustments – legislature to finalize - expect multiplier 
increase/funding cap increase ??

Transportation Funding - legislature to finalize funding formula changes ??

Inflationary Formula Allocation Adjustment – legislature to finalize funding formula changes ?? 

Employer Benefit Allocation & Health Insurance Allocation - $14,136 to ???per year health 
insurance

?? 

Retirement rate decrease/employer contribution decreases ??

Materials, Supplies & Operating Cost (MSOC) - legislature to finalize funding formula changes ??

LEA Calculation Formula Changes ??

EP&O Levy -2025-$23.85M  (Spring 53% received /Fall 47% received) 2026-$24.7M No Change  

Levy Equalization Based on AV/Enrollment 2024-25 $14.2M Actual to Projected (as of today) 
$13.5M $(900,000)

Other revenue changes -

Total Preliminary Revenue Change ?????



7

Basic Ed/Local Funded Staffing Costs
Projected 
Increase 
March 12

2024-25 Added Staff/ Cost vs 2024-25 Budget……..currently trending at Budget ??

Working on 
staffing and 

awaiting 
legislative 
session 

information to 
update 

amounts.

Elementary Cert Staff – expect to reduce 3.0 positions via attrition ($381,000)

Middle School/High School Teaching Staff  - expect to reduce 0.5 positions via attrition ($63,000) 

Alternative Program Staffing ??

Special Education Certificated & Paraeducator Staff ??

Other Support/Operations/Maintenance Staffing  ??

Projected Increase in Staff Costs/Inflationary Adjustments/Employer Benefits ??

Certificated/Classified Pools  $19.5M (Overload/Subs/Coaches/Extra Pay/Leave Cash Outs, Etc.) $457,000 

Re-allocate Staff Costs (To)/From Other Program Funding Sources ??

Preliminary Basic Ed/Local Funded Staff-Related Cost Change ????

Preliminary Basic Ed/Local Fund Non – Staff Related Cost Change ??

Preliminary Basic Ed/Local Funded Total Cost Change ????

Change In Revenue vs Expenditure    ????

2024-25 Budget Revenue vs Expenditure ($948,177)

2025-26 Budget Revenue vs Expenditure: Estimate ($????) ????

2025-26 Preliminary Staff/Non-Staff Cost Changes



General Fund:  Materials/Supply/Operating Costs (MSOC)

8

Materials/Supplies/Operating Costs (MSOC) 
Select Categories

20/21 
Budget

 21/22 
Budget

22/23 
Budget

23/24   
Budget

24/25 
Budget  

25/26 Prelim 
Budget

Budget 
Change 25-26 -

24-25
Utility Cost   $    3,641,500  $    3,642,500  $    3,748,250  $     4,024,500  $    4,127,000  $        (4,127,000)

Property/Liability Insurance  2,280,000 2,755,000 3,071,900 3,276,500 4,167,600  $        (4,167,600)

Transportation/Fleet Fuel 885,000 885,000 900,000 1,220,000 1,220,000  $        (1,220,000)

Transportation 491,300 156,430 146,430 146,430 204,130  $           (204,130)

Curriculum Adoption/License Renewals 1,032,500 1,122,500            122,500            355,000            940,000  $           (940,000)

IT/Technology/Software 3,109,000 3,109,000 3,189,000 3,189,000 3,389,000  $        (3,389,000)

Maint/Fleet/Custodial/Grounds/Warehouse/Print Shop 3,592,850 3,454,850 3,122,850 3,149,350 3,212,350  $        (3,212,350)

Maint/Grounds (Equipment & Fleet Replacement) 221,500 221,500 196,500 196,500 196,500  $           (196,500)

Special Education  1,309,976 1,309,976 1,130,476 1,915,476 2,271,976  $        (2,271,976)

Security Resource Officer Contract 400,000 400,000 415,000 710,000 735,000  $           (735,000)

Education Service District (ESD) Prevention Services 175,000 175,000 175,000 185,000 210,000  $           (210,000)

Reading Foundation $276K/Team Read $124K 379,575 379,575 379,575 395,000 400,000  $           (400,000)

Testing/Assessment Contract 185,000 185,000              70,000            185,000            185,000  $           (185,000)

Building Budgets 2,502,875 2,456,242 2,266,922 2,300,132 2,288,400  $        (2,288,400)

Other MSOC/No Tri Tech/No CTE (01,02,97) 2,104,741 2,485,920 2,110,443 2,203,205 2,389,455  $        (2,389,455)

Delta/Running Start/CBC Academy-Offset With Revenue 0 0 0  $                         -   

Open Doors- Offset With Revenue                       -                         -                          -    $                         -   

Subtotal Basic Ed/Local Funded MSOC Budget Change  $ 22,310,817  $  22,738,493  $  21,044,846  $  23,451,093  $  25,936,411  $      (25,936,411)

Delta/Running Start/CBC Academy-Offset With Revenue        3,610,000        3,585,000         3,360,000         3,718,864         4,832,000  $        (4,832,000)

Open Doors- Offset With Revenue  $       375,000  $       365,000  $        390,500  $        416,000  $        760,000  $           (760,000)

Science Resource Center (Offset With Revenue) 897,500 187,500 222,500 242,500 247,500  $           (247,500)

Learning Assistance Program - Other Student Support           385,000            511,830            627,000            660,000            600,000  $           (600,000)

Career & Technical Education (CTE) 1,086,834 967,886 1,602,886 1,389,886 1,305,211  $        (1,305,211)

Tri Tech Skill Center 1,423,228 1,668,228 1,853,228         1,995,728         1,820,728  $        (1,820,728)

Federal Programs 1,077,746 2,538,310 1,234,234         1,294,074         1,146,677  $        (1,146,677)

Learning Assistance Program (LAP) 282,377 715,470 632,281            663,531            701,700  $           (701,700)

Bilingual 266,000 162,500 164,500            164,500            192,642  $           (192,642)

Early Childhood Educ. Assistance Program (ECEAP) 274,500 277,000 277,000            316,815            280,510  $           (280,510)

Food Service Program 5,480,903 4,708,343 5,672,373         6,435,995         6,923,999  $        (6,923,999)

ESSER (Mental Health & Tutoring $1.0M Each/Math $2.5M)                       -                         -                          -                          -                          -    $                         -   

Other Grants/Contingency 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000         1,500,000         2,500,000  $        (2,500,000)

Other Non-Local Funded Program Change   950,322 725,470 709,169            660,169            623,702  $           (623,702)

 Subtotal  $ 17,609,410  $  17,912,537  $  18,245,671  $  19,458,062  $  21,934,669  $      (21,934,669)

Total  Materials/Supplies/Operating Cost (MSOC) Change  $ 39,920,227  $  40,651,030  $  39,290,517  $  42,909,155  $  47,871,080  $      (47,871,080)



Board Questions and 
Discussion



• April 27, 2025
• End date for Legislative Session

• March – May 
• Budget Presentations 

o General Fund
o Capital Fund
o Debt Service Fund
o ASB Fund
o Transportation Fund
o Self- Insured Programs

• June 18, 2025
• Public Hearing & Adoption of District Budget

• On or before July 10, 2025
• Must submit F195 to ESD for review

10

2025-26 Budget Process and Timeline



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: March 12, 2025 

 

  

Topic K-12 Academic Progress Update: All Students are Engaged Learners 
 

Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
X 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

Our performance indicator reporting calendar includes a March Progress Report to the 
Board. The presentation includes data from academic assessments that were administered 
in the fall and winter. The presentation will also share bright spots and actions that schools 
are taking to increase student acheivement.     

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

 Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

X System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

•  N/A  
 

Next Steps  •  N/A 
 



K-12 Academic Progress Update
All Students are Engaged Learners

March 12, 2025



Topic 
Overview 
Page





Presentation Outline

Performance Indicators & Targets 2024 – 25 Results Actions Taken to Get Results
Bright Spots 



Performance Indicators 
• Specific to each grade level
• Include multiple measures 
• Focused on growth and proficiency in:

o Reading/ELA
o Math
o English Language Acquisition
o Science
o On Track for Graduation: Credit Acquisition and Passing Grades
o Dual Credit and Preparation for Post-Secondary
o Graduation and Preparation for Post-Secondary or Work 

• Growth Targets



Annual Reporting Calendar Annual Reporting Calendar 

Month Focus 
September State assessments:  Smarter Balance Assessment (SBA) and WIDA 

District assessments: Star Early Literacy and Star*

December 8th grade Algebra
Credit accumulation
Dual credit 
Graduation rates
 

March District assessments progress report: WaKIDS, STAR reading and math, 
credit accumulation  

May District assessments: Star reading and math 

*Prior to 2024-25, schools used either DIBELS or Star CBM and MAP or Star assessment. Star Early Literacy and Star are being implemented for grades K - 5 effective 2024-
25  



Kindergarten Readiness:
Washington Kindergarten Inventory of Developing Skills 
(WaKIDS)



Washington Kindergarten Inventory of 
Developing Skills (WaKIDS)

Source: OSPI Report Card 
https://washingtonstatereportcard.ospi.k12.wa.us/ReportCard/ViewSchoolOrDistrict/100116

https://washingtonstatereportcard.ospi.k12.wa.us/ReportCard/ViewSchoolOrDistrict/100116


Source: OSPI Education Data System (EDS) for Administrators



2024-2025 WaKIDS by Program Participation 

Source: OSPI Education Data System (EDS) for Administrators

Kindergarten 
Ready by 
Number of 
Domains

Attended ECEAP*

(23-24)

Attended TTK **

(23-24)
No ECEAP or 

TTK

0 7.5% 3.6% 8.9%

1 11.6% 10.7% 7.0%

2 15.0% 10.7% 8.6%

3 10.9% 0.0% 8.5%

4 10.2% 14.3% 10.9%

5 15.0% 17.9% 16.8%

6 29.9% 42.9% 39.3%

*Early Childhood Education and Assistance Program      **Transition to Kindergarten 



ECEAP: Early Childhood Education Assistance Program
TTK: Transition to Kindergarten

Kindergarten
(all Kindergarten)

Attended ECEAP Attended TTK        

2023-2024 2024-2025 2022-2023
(155 students)

2023-2024
(147 students)

2022-2023
(24 students)

2023-2024
(28 students)

Cognitive 71.9% 63.6% 67.0% 52.4% 83.0% 53.6%

Language 68.1% 65.8% 68.0% 53.7% 67.0% 75.0%

Literacy 73.2% 69.2% 72.0% 63.9% 75.0% 78.6%

Math 62.6% 59.8% 57.0% 55.1% 63.0% 67.9%

Physical 79.4% 79.1% 78.0% 74.8% 83.0% 85.7%

Social 
Emotional

72.9% 72.9% 71% 69.4% 88.0% 75.0%



Elementary Reading and Math 
Growth and Proficiency: Star Assessment



Percentile Rank (PR) vs Student Growth Percentile (SGP) 

https://renaissance.widen.net/s/w8fqkbltb9/r57137

https://renaissance.widen.net/s/w8fqkbltb9/r57137


Student Growth Percentiles (SGPs) 

• SGPs are a norm-referenced quantification of individual student growth derived using quantile 
regression techniques (Betebenner, 2011). 

• The SGP score compares a student’s growth from one
period to another with that of his or her academic peers nationwide—defined as students in 
the same
grade with a similar scaled score history. 

• SGPs range from 1–99 and interpretation is similar to
percentile rank (PR) scores: lower numbers indicate lower relative growth and higher numbers 
indicate
higher relative growth. For example, an SGP of 75 means the student’s growth exceeds the 
growth of 75 percent of students with a similar score history.

• SGPs help us understand, given where a student started, to what extent the growth achieved 
was as
expected. 

• Typical growth for a year is 50 SGP.

https://renaissance.widen.net/s/w8fqkbltb9/r57137

https://renaissance.widen.net/s/w8fqkbltb9/r57137


Grade K-2 
Indicators & 
Growth 
Targets

% of students 
progressing from urgent 
intervention to 
intervention; from 
intervention to on watch; 
or from on watch to 
at/above benchmark by 
spring is increasing by 
≥3% each year

% of all students making 
typical growth by spring 
is increasing by ≥3% 
each year 

 
Star Early Lit

% of students meeting 
benchmark 

Star Reading
% of students making typical 

growth
 

2023-2024 2024-2025 2023-2024 2024-2025

Kindergarten 43% 
(432 of 1008)

47%
(563 of 1196)

51% 
(463 of 900)

51%
(578 of 1138)

Grade 1 32% 
(277 of 875)

43%
(497 of 1147)

39% 
(335 of 850)

43%
(485 of 1127)

Grade 2 48% 
(207 of 532)

51%
(627 of 1241)

54% 
(591 of 1096)

55%
(669 of 1214)

Star Math
% of students making typical growth

2023-2024 2024-2025

Kindergarten 45% 
(73 of 161)

54%
(568 of 1058)

Grade 1 53% 
(491 of 930)

60%
(700 of 1170)

Grade 2 49% 
(515 of 1053)

52%
(663 of 1270)



Grades 3-5 
Indicators & 
Growth 
Targets

% of all students 
making typical growth 
by spring is 
increasing by ≥3% 
each year 

Star Math
 % of students making typical growth 

2023-2024 2024-2025

Grade 3 53%
(607 of 1139)

52%
(663 of 1270)

Grade 4 51% 
(590 of 1156)

50%
(608 of 1347) 

Grade 5 54% 
(614 of 1128)

55%
(749 of 1373)

Star Reading
% of students making typical growth

2023-2024 2024-2025

Grade 3 52% 
(585 of 1119)

52%
(706 of 1365)

Grade 4 58% 
(668 of 1156)

57%
(765 of 1341)

Grade 5 50% 
(563 of 1130)

53%
(730 of 1368)



Percentile Rank (PR) vs Student Growth Percentile (SGP) 

https://renaissance.widen.net/s/w8fqkbltb9/r57137

https://renaissance.widen.net/s/w8fqkbltb9/r57137


Star Estimated Benchmark Level

Star Reading Proficiency Rate: Measures the percentage of students 
estimated to score at or above the state benchmark on the Star Reading 
assessment, using their most recent score in the district screening window.

State Benchmark Categories: Represent predicted proficiency on state 
tests based on linking studies between Star Reading/Math and state 
assessments (not available for Star Early Literacy or Star Spanish).

Performance Forecasting: State benchmarks can help predict student 
performance on upcoming state assessments and support intervention 
planning.

Source: Star State Linking Studies

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fstar-help.renaissance.com%2Fhc%2Fen-us%2Farticles%2F11459706993179&data=05%7C02%7Calyssa.sthilaire%40ksd.org%7C91a7ea3bdda44a76205c08dd5c2e44d2%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638768075980296610%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=SaFyZ%2BjiFW49YVyHcU%2FikS6kCcX4BSfRJpA%2BAO66PaU%3D&reserved=0


Source: Smarter Balanced Assessments: What do the Scores Mean?

Smarter Balanced Assessment (SBA) Levels

https://portal.smarterbalanced.org/wp-content/uploads/WhatDoTheScoresMean6.pdf


Star Benchmark:
Projecting Meeting State Standards



Grades 3-5 
Indicators & 
Proficiency 
Targets

% of students 
meeting grade level 
state standards is 
increasing by ≥3% 
each year 

Star Math
 % of students projected to meet grade level standards

Star
2023-2024

SBA
2023-2024

Star
2024-2025

Grade 3 43%
(500 of 1163)

46% 46%
(657 of 1416)

Grade 4 38%
(451 of 1191)

41% 42%
(573 of 1377)

Grade 5 32%
(368 of 1148)

36% 33%
(465 of 1406)

Star Reading
% of students projected to meet state grade level standards

Star
2023-2024

SBA
2023-2024

Star
2024-2025

Grade 3 43%
(486 of 1127)

43% 47%
(652 of 1391)

Grade 4 47%
(562 of 1187)

44% 48%
(663 of 1377)

Grade 5 47%
(547 or 1153)

48% 51%
(721 of 1404)



Middle School Reading and Math 
Growth and Proficiency: Star Assessment



Grades 6-8 
Indicators & 
Growth 
Targets

% of all students 
making typical 
growth by spring is 
increasing by ≥3% 
each year 

Star Reading
% of students making typical growth

2023-2024 2024-2025

Grade 6 49% 
(255 of 519)

49%
(611 of 1258)

Grade 7 49% 
(234 of 480)

51%
(695 of 1350)

Grade 8 46% 
(206 of 444)

50%
(661 of 1329)

Star Math
% of students making typical growth

2023-2024 2024-2025

Grade 6 46%
(232 of 507)

43%
(544 of 1273)

Grade 7 42% 
(195 of 469)

47%
(631 of 1356)

Grade 8 43% 
(187 of 440)

51%
(679 of 1332)



Grades 6-8 
Indicators & 
Proficiency 
Targets

% of students 
meeting grade level 
state standards is 
increasing by ≥3% 
each year 

Star Reading 
% of students projected to meet grade level standards

 
Star

2023-2024
SBA

2023-2024
Star

2024-2025
Grade 6 40%

(223 of 554)
43% 45%

(584 of 1304)

Grade 7 42%
(214 of 514)

51% 47%
(653 of 1384)

Grade 8 43%
(213 of 501)

41% 45%
(617 of 1371)

Math
% of students projected to meet grade level standards

Star
2023-2024

SBA
2023-2024

Star
2024-2025

Grade 6 22%
(122 of 558)

31% 29%
(380 of 1310)

Grade 7 21%
(106 of 514)

30% 27%
(377 of 1398)

Grade 8 21%
(101 of 477)

23% 27% 
(373 of 1367)



Dual Language Growth Trajectory



Dual Language Growth in Spanish and English

• Students learning to read in two languages follow different 
trajectories than their monolingual peers (in development)

• Dual Language students should be measured using 
bilingual norms
• What is known and understood in one language 

contributes to what is known and understood in the 
other

• Star progress monitoring in English and Spanish) 

Source: The Power of Biliteracy Trajectories for Holistic Student Assessment

https://info.renaissance.com/biliteracy-trajectories-webinar.html#:%7E:text=The%20Power%20of%20Biliteracy%20Trajectories%20for%20Holistic%20Student%20Assessment&text=Research%20shows%20that%20students%20who,decisions%20and%20support%20students'%20success.


Dual Language 
Growth in 
Spanish and 
English

% of all students 
making typical growth 
by spring is 
increasing by ≥3% 
each year 

Grade Level 
Star Reading (English)

% of students making 
typical growth

Star Reading (Spanish)
% of students making typical 

growth

2023-2024 2024-2025 2023-2024 2024-2025

Kindergarten 
(Early Lit)

34% 
(71 of 211)

31%
(64 of 205)

52%
(106 of 203)

46%
(96 of 208)

Grade 1  
(Early Lit)

30%
(58 of 191)

31%
(71 of 229)

42%
(79 of 187)

32%
(74 of 228)

Grade 2  44%
(79 of 181)

49%
(92 of 187)

41%
(82 of 201)

50%
(96 of 193)

Grade 3 46% 
(76 of 167)

52%
(112 of 214)

50%
(83 of165) 

50%
(111 of 220)

Grade 4 54%
(79 of 147)

61%
(112 of 183)

49%
(77 of 157)

65%
(123 of 188)

Grade 5 44%
(59 of 134)

51%
(88 of 171)

47%
(64 of 135)

56%
(97 of 173)

Grade 6** 46%
(50 of 109)

66%
(67 of 101)

Grade 7** 52%
(63 of 122)

50%
(55 of 109)

Grade 8** 50%
(79 of 158)

55%
(31 of 56)

*Star data includes students in dual language programs at Amistad, Eastgate, Fuerza, Highlands and Park
**Not all middle schools administered Star in 2023-2024



Dual Language: Percentage of students with typical growth (50+SGP)

Data set included dual students at Amistad, Eastgate, Fuerza, Highlands, and Park
Star will release nationally normed biliteracy projections this Spring, 2025
Source: The Power of Biliteracy Trajectories for Holistic Student Assessment

HLE: Home Language English
TLE: Test Language English
HLS: Home Language Spanish
TLS: Test Language Spanish

https://info.renaissance.com/biliteracy-trajectories-webinar.html#:%7E:text=The%20Power%20of%20Biliteracy%20Trajectories%20for%20Holistic%20Student%20Assessment&text=Research%20shows%20that%20students%20who,decisions%20and%20support%20students'%20success.


High School: On Track for Graduation 



Grades 9-12 
Indicator & 
Target

% of students 
passing 
earning 
required credit 
is increasing by 
≥3% each year 

Grade 
Level

Credits 
needed to 

be on track 
at the end 

of 1st 
semester

2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025

Grade 9
3+

81%
(1213 of 1493)

75%
(1148 of 1522)

81%
(1118 of 1416)

Grade 10
9+

69%
(1213 of 1493)

71%
(1059 of 1502)

66%
(986 of 1511)

Grade 11
15+

64%
(909 of 1413)

65%
(990 of 1525)

68%
(1015 of 1473)

Grade 12 21+ 63%
(921of 1454)

68%
(1028 of 1520)

67%
(1081 of 1603)



Grades 9-12 
Indicator & 
Target

% of students 
passing all classes 
from semester 1 to 
semester 2 is 
increasing by ≥3% 
each year 

Grade Level 

2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025

Grade 9 74%
(1091 of 1471)

68%
(1063 of 1566)

74%
(1041 of 1404)

Grade 10 71% 
(1079 of 1516)

71% 
(1076 of 1527)

67%
(988 of 1472)

Grade 11 76% 
(1305 of 1717)

70% 
(1044 of 1494)

76%
(1073 of 1417)

Grade 12 82% 
(1429 of 1739)

79% 
(1108 of 1397)

82%
(1175 of 1437)



Curriculum Assessment Instruction

Actions Taken to Get Results/Bright Spots 



Reading/ELA 
Growth  

Math Growth  

Schools with 50% of their 
grade level making 
typical growth or more in 
at least four grade levels

Schools with 50% of their 
grade level making 
typical growth or more in 
at least four grade levels

Amon Creek
Canyon View
Cottonwood
Eastgate
Fuerza
Hawthorne
Lincoln
Ridge View
Sage Crest
Sunset View
Washington
Westgate

Amistad
Amon Creek
Canyon View
Cottonwood
Fuerza
Hawthorne
Ridge View
Sage Crest
Sunset View
Vista
Washington
Westgate

Elementary Bright Spots Secondary Bright Spots

Reading/ELA 
Growth  

Math Growth  

Schools with 50% of their 
grade level making 
typical growth or more in 
at least four grade levels

Schools with 50% of their 
grade level making 
typical growth or more in 
at least four grade levels

Chinook
Desert Hills
Mid Columbia 
Partnership

Chinook
Highlands



Elementary Actions Taken for STAR Growth
School Curriculum Assessment Instruction

Sunset View 
Elementary

• Piloting CLKA materials 
• Implementing ClearMath 

materials 

• Goal setting with students • Focusing on early literacy 
skills

Canyon View 
Elementary

• Piloting CLKA materials 
• Focusing on team-identified 

essential standards

• Progress monitoring every six 
weeks with Star and SBA 
interim assessments  

• Analyzing data to inform next 
steps

• Using University of 
Florida Literacy Institute 
(UFL) strategies for 
teaching foundational 
reading strategies

• Focusing on academic 
vocabulary

Sage Crest 
Elementary

• Understanding grade level 
standards and student 
expectations

• Tracking student data and 
monitoring every six weeks

• Using engaging teaching 
strategies



Results: Six-week pilot 

K-5 ELA Amplify/Core 
Knowledge Language 
Arts (CKLA)

Grade Level School

Star Reading 
Fall to Winter 
Growth (SGP)

Kindergarten Hawthorne
43
45
59

Grade 1 Ridge View
62
51
62

Grade 2
Washington

67
59
52
62

Grade 3
Canyon View

59
59
69

Washington
 

52
38
63

Grade 4

Cascade 59

Sage Crest
46
55
49
56

Washington 52

Grade 5 Cottonwood
57
44
46



Middle School Actions Taken for STAR Growth

School Curriculum Assessment Instruction

Chinook Middle 
School 

• Identifying essential 
standards

• Goal setting for classes 
and assessments with 
students with progress 
monitoring during advisory 
period

• Aligning rigor and 
practice to Smarter 
Balance Assessments

Desert Hills 
Middle School 

• Focusing on team-
identified essential 
standards

• Using assessment results 
to drive instruction through 
professional learning 
teams 

• Developing common 
unit calendars

Highlands 
Middle School 

• Providing all students 
support to meet grade 
level math standards

• Using Star data to better 
understand needed math 
interventions and 
extensions

• Aligning rigor and 
practice to Smarter 
Balance Assessments



Actions Taken to Improve Secondary Math Mastery 

KSD Blueprint
• Claims/Targets from 

SBA aligned to 
Standards

• SBA example 
problems linked to 
Targets/Standards

• Help guide 
collaborative  
Essential Standards 
work happening in 
buildings



Actions Taken to Improve Secondary Math Mastery 

Worked sample SBA problems to think critically 
about how students would answer, where 

students would make mistakes, and how we can 
continue to build critical thinkers and problem 

solvers in our classroom. Further, discussed how 
we make sure students are seeing these forms of 

questions on our classroom assessments.

Discussed the Depth of Knowledge (DOK) of 
each example problem.



Actions Taken to Improve Secondary Math Mastery 

Working sample SBA problems that require 
communicating reasoning and error analysis. 

Analyzing an article from the Journal of 
Research on Educational Effectiveness about 

this pre-worked examples. This is a best 
practice and low-cost way to improve math 

achievement.

Discussing SBA problem scoring to better 
understand how student responses are scored. 



Board Questions and Discussion 



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: March 12, 2025 

 

  

Topic Preliminary Recommendation: K-5 English Language Arts Materials  
 

Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
X 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

One of the 2024-2025 annual objectives tied to our goal, “All students are engaged 
learners” is to conduct curriculum review, instructional materials assessment, and 
adoption of K-5 English Language Arts.  A commitee has been working throughout the year 
and a final recommendation will be presented to the Board on March 26. This preliminary 
recommendation presentation details the evaluation and selection process, the 
committee’s recommendation, pilot and review data, and costs.   

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role  X Policy   

X System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Were all vetting and review process as specified in policy and procedure 2310/2310 R 
appropriately followed? 

• Does the Board have questions or requests for further information?  
 

Next Steps  •  The final recommendation will be presented for Board approval on March 26.  
 



Preliminary Recommendation:
K-5 English Language Arts Instructional Materials 

March 12, 2025

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Good evening, everyone! Thank you for joining us as we engage in an important step in selecting the best ELA curriculum for our students. Tonight, you will have the opportunity to explore the materials under consideration, ask questions, and share your insights.



Topic 
Overview

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
 



Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
 



Presentation Outline

• Instructional materials adoption cycle
• Evaluation and selection process

o Committee process and timeline
o Selection criteria  
o Science of Reading research based 

• Committee recommendation: Amplify Core 
Knowledge Language Arts (CKLA)

o Research and evidence of impact
• Pilot and review data
• Costs
• Board access, questions, and discussion
• Next steps 



Instructional Materials Adoption Cycle 



Committee Members

• K-5 Content Specialist
• K-5 Classroom Teachers (75)
• Principals/Assistant Principals
• Central Office Staff



Process and Timeline 
May 2024 Sub group narrowed the materials from six 

potential publishers to two preferred 
resources to present to full committee. 

September 2024 Full committee began bi-monthly meetings 
and publisher presentations

October-December 2024 50 teachers piloted the instructional 
materials and provided feedback to 
committee

October-November 2024 Publishers visited and shared connection to 
evaluation tool.

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Our ELA Adoption Committee has been working diligently over the past several months to review and evaluate resources with a clear focus on ensuring they align with our students’ needs, support effective instruction, and foster a lifelong love for literacy. We are committed to selecting materials that promote high levels of engagement, accessibility, and rigor while meeting the diverse needs of our learners.



ELA Adoption Process Overview

December 2024 Pilot feedback was presented to the full 
committee.

January 2025 Full committee reviewed and evaluated 
resources to build consensus.

February-March 2025 Community meetings and site-based review 
opportunities were held.

March 2025 Recommendation is being presented to the 
Instructional Materials Committee (IMC) and 
the KSD School Board.



Selection Criteria

• Aligned with Washington State ELA 
Standards

• Grounded in Science of Reading
• Integrated Digital Support and Flexible 

Technology
• Inclusive Teaching Strategies
• Age and Level Appropriate Format 

and Content  

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
This is what we are looking for in a resource to ensure that it meets the needs for all learners. ✅ Aligned with State Standards – The curriculum must match the Washington State Learning Standards for ELA, ensuring students learn the skills they need at each grade level.✅ Based on the Science of Reading – The materials should use research-backed teaching methods that support how students learn to read and understand texts effectively.✅ Engaging and Flexible for All Learners – We want a curriculum that provides:Different ways for students to engage with reading and writing.A variety of teaching and grouping strategies to support students based on their individual learning needs, interests, and strengths. ✅ Technology & Digital Resources – The curriculum should include:Online tools and multimedia resources to enhance classroom learning.Seamless integration with the district’s current online learning platform, Schoology, to make access easier for students and teachers.✅ User-Friendly Digital Tools – The technology should be flexible so that teachers and students can easily explore new and different resources to enrich learning.✅ Support for All Students – The curriculum should include strategies to help:Students who may struggle with reading and writing.Special education (SPED) students who can benefit from core materials with added support.English Language Learners (ELLs) with strategies to build language skills while learning content.Students who are ready for more advanced challenges to deepen their learning.Our goal is to select materials that make reading and writing engaging, accessible, and effective for all students.



Scarborough’s Reading Rope



Evaluation/Rating Process 



Committee Recommendation 

Amplify Core Knowledge Language Arts 
(CKLA)



Why CKLA

• Grounded in the Science of Reading
• Builds foundational skills for long-term 

success
• Builds background knowledge in 

science, social studies, literature and 
the arts

• Daily writing deepens student learning
• Built in strategies for struggling and 

advanced learners

Source: https://amplify.com/programs/amplify-core-knowledge-language-arts/

https://amplify.com/programs/amplify-core-knowledge-language-arts/


Foundational skills that makes a difference

Example: Fall, 2025 Ridge View Pilot Teacher



Source: https://amplify.com/pdf/uploads/2024/08/CKLA_3E_ProgramGuide_SkillsbyYear_0823024.pdf

https://amplify.com/pdf/uploads/2024/08/CKLA_3E_ProgramGuide_SkillsbyYear_0823024.pdf




K-2 Knowledge Sequence Connections (Science, Social Studies, Literature and the Arts)

Kindergarten First Grade Second Grade

Unit 1:Star Light, Star Bright:Nursery
Rhymes and Fables

Unit 1: The Moral of the story: Fables and Tales Unit 1: Fortunes and Feats: Fairy Tales and Tall 
Tales

Unit 2: See, Hear, Smell, Taste, Touch: The Five 
Senses

Unit  2: From Nose to Toes: How Your Body Works Unit 2: The Birthplace of Democracy: Ancient 
Greece

Unit 3: Underdogs and Heroes: Stories Unit 3: Common Threads: Different Lands, Similar 
Stories

Unit 3: Legends and Heroes: Greek Myths

Unit 4: See How they Grow: Plants Unit 4: Reach for the Stars: Astronomy Unit 4: Our Planet: Cycles in Nature

Unit 5: Moo, Cluck, Oink: Farms Unit 5:P Charting the World: Geography Unit 5:Butterflies, Bees, and Beetles:Insects

Unit 6: Deep Roots: Introduction to Native 
American Cultures

Unit 6: A World of Homes: Animals and Habitats Unit 6: A House Divided: The American Civil War

Unit 7: All  Around the World: Geography Unit 7: A New Nation: American Independence Unit 7: Sounds and Stanzas :Poetry

Unit 8: Royal Tales: Monarchs Unit 8: Our Planet: The History of the Earth Unit 8: Journeys to America Immigration

Unit 9: Rain and Rainbows: Seasons and Weather Unit 9: Early Americas: Maya, Aztec. and Inca Unit 9: Building Blocks: All About Nutrition

Unit 10: Research Unit: Shaped by Nature: Art and 
the World Around Us

Unit 10: Research Unit: Adventure Stories: Tales 
from the Edge

Unit 10: (Research Unit): Taking Flight: The Age of 
Aviation



3-5 Knowledge Sequence Connections (Science, Social Studies, Literature and the Arts)

Third Fourth Fifth

Unit 1: Timeless Tales: Classic Stories Unit 1: My Story, My Voice: Personal Narratives Unit 1: In My Own Words: Personal Narratives

Unit 2:Fur, Fins, and Feathers: Animal 
Classification

Unit 2:Knights and Castles: Europe’s Middle Ages Unit 2: Early Americas: Maya. Aztec. And Inca

Unit 3: Rhythm and Rhyme: Poetry Unit 3: Meaning and Metaphor: Poetry Unit 3: Vision in Verse: Poetry

Unit 4: Rise and Fall: Ancient Rome Unit 4: Eureka! Student Inventor Unit 4: Knight's Tale: Don Quixote

Unit 5: Our Solar System and Beyond: Astronomy Unit 5: Our Planet: Geology Unit 5: The Deep Blue World: Oceans

Unit 6: Regions and Cultures: Native Americans Unit 6: Road to Independence: The American 
Revolution

Unit 6: Cultures and Histories: Native Americans

Unit 7: Charlotte’s Web (Novel) Unit 7: The Season of Styx Malone (Novel) Unit 7: The Science of Breakable Things (Novel)

Unit 8: Systems and Senses: The Human Body Unit 8: Crafting Stories: A World of Tales Unit 8: Arts and Cultures: The Renaissance

Unit 9: Research Unit: All That Jazz Unit 9: Research Unit: Inspiration and Ingenuity: 
American Innovation

Unit 9: Research Unit: Building Up the World: 
Global Architecture



Research and Evidence of Impact

THIRD PARTY 
REVIEWS

EFFICACY STUDIES DISTRICT CASE 
STUDIES

REVIEWS OF 
WASHINGTON 

DISTRICTS USING 
CKLA



Third Party 
Curriculum 
Reviews: 
EdReports

Source: https://amplify.com/pdf/uploads/2023/12/CKLA_ImpactBrochure_120423_WEB.pdf

https://amplify.com/pdf/uploads/2023/12/CKLA_ImpactBrochure_120423_WEB.pdf


Additional Fact Gathering From:
• Clarkston School District
• Chelan School District
• Lake Stevens School District
• Lyndon School District
• Prescott School District
• Richland School District
• Stanwood School District
• Sunnyside School District
• Sumner School District
• West Valley School District
• Wishram School District



Foundational Skills

Science

World 
History and 
Civilizations

Literature

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Support foundational reading skills and language comprehension.



Results: Six-week pilot 

K-5 ELA Amplify/Core 
Knowledge Language 
Arts (CKLA)

Grade Level School

Star Reading 
Fall to Winter 
Growth (SGP)

Kindergarten Hawthorne
43
45
59

Grade 1 Ridge View
62
51
62

Grade 2
Washington

67
59
52
62

Grade 3
Canyon View

59
59
69

Washington
52
38
63

Grade 4

Cascade 59

Sage Crest
46
55
49
56

Washington 52

Grade 5 Cottonwood
57
44
46



Pilot Feedback

Student: “It’s FUN because it has history, and it takes you back to the 
past.”

Teacher: “The units have enhanced my student's curiosity and 
comprehension of complex concepts and accessible for all my 
learners.”

Parent: “For the first time in a long time, my child is excited about reading 
and learning about geology. She wants to be a geologist!”

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
These are personal statements made by students, teachers and parents whose children experienced CKLA through the pilot process. 



Community Preview and Feedback



Feedback from Community Members 

51 Total Responses

Recommend 
without 
reservation

Recommend 
with 
reservation 

Cannot accept 
the content of 
this material 

Staff/Parent 14

Parent/Community Member 24 3 1

Staff 5

Anonymous/Other 4 1

Total 47 4 1



Materials Costs

• Total Purchase Amount: $1,947,896
• 8-year Digital Subscription
• 5-year Consumable Subscription
• Payment Schedule over 3 years



Board Access to Materials



Board Questions and Discussion



Next Steps

• March 13, 2025: Recommendation to Instructional Materials 
Committee (IMC)

• March 26, 2025: Final recommendation to Board



Timestamp Your Name Parent/Community/Staff Recommendation

Has the teacher 
adequately laid 
out the standards 
information 
within the 
instructional 
material?

Does the material 
contain any of the 
following?

In light of these mature 
themes please indicate 
why you believe the 
material is still valuable 
as a teaching resource.

General 
Appearan

ce:

Readabilit
y of type:

Quality of 
paper and 

binding:

Appropria
teness of 
illustratio

ns:

Format 
and 

general 
organizati

on:

Has 
appropriat

e 
sequential 
developm

ent:

Provides 
varied 

teaching 
and 

learning 
strategies

:

Do the materials 
presented seem to be 
varied and interesting in 
a way that would be 
engaging to students?

Provides 
for 

measuring 
student 

achieveme
nt:

Provides 
clearly 

organized 
teacher 
edition:

Consistent 
with the 

Washingto
n State 

Learning 
Standards

Reflects 
respect for 

personal 
worth and 
life styles:

Aids in 
building 
positive 
attitudes 

and 
understan

ding:

Depicts 
cultural 

diversity:

Deals 
effectively 

with 
issues and 
problems:

Offers 
accurate 

and/or 
realistic 

treatment 
of subject:

Incorporat
es 

balanced 
viewpoints

:

Makes 
provision 

for 
distinguishi
ng between 

fact and 
opinion:

Stimulates 
critical 

thinking:
Any other comments about these materials:

3/5/2025 14:25:18 Mrs Soper Parent/Community Cannot accept the content of this materialNone of these 2 3 High 2 2 2 1Low 2 Stories seem vivid 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1Low 2 2 Digraphs in Kindergarten?

2/20/2025 19:02:42 Jessica Quigley Parent/Community Recommended with 
reservations Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High My only concern was the material building upon itself and the kids 

not knowing the previous years teaching. 

2/25/2025 12:54:33 Anonynous Recommended with 
reservations Yes

Controversial 
ideology or 
philosophy?

Get rid of any race 
materials. 3 High 3 High 3 High 2 2 2 3 High Yes 3 High N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2 Race should not be included in curriculum. Same with cultural 

diversity. 

2/25/2025 12:58:24 Mandy Simmelink Parent/Community Recommended with 
reservations Yes

Controversial 
ideology or 
philosophy?

I believe that 
education in every 
realm is important. 
Ignorance is never 
bliss in a complex, 
challenging, and 
changing world.

3 High 2 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High It seems so at this 
time. 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High N/a

2/25/2025 14:27:00 Jayann Wright Parent/Community Recommended with 
reservations Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes, I believe so. 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 2 2 3 High 2 3 High 3 High

Just wondering how you will apply starting level assessment in the 
classroom. (For example, a student performing above or below grade 
level, will they simply be reassigned to a classroom at the 
appropriate performance level? Or will you just power through?) This 
is my only “reservation” about adopting the material - it will be 
successful if students are appropriately placed. 

But mostly, my student is currently attending MCP but I would love to 
use this curriculum. I feel it would be amazing for individual 
instruction. I just wonder how all the online testing and assessments 
would work? Would they be available to put on his Chromebook as 
the district already owned them? Or would I have to have the whole 
thing on my own? [1]

2/20/2025 18:39:22 Evelyn Moos Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 2 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High N/A 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yay

2/20/2025 18:45:50 Angela Gonzalez Staff Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 2 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

The knowledge 
part does exactly 
this!

2 3 High 3 High 3 High N/A 2 2 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High None at this time

2/20/2025 18:56:26 Abigail Cronenwett Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

I think my 
students will love 
the topics 
available. 

3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High N/A 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High The illustrations were excellent and I love that the topics overlap 
through the grade levels to build upon knowledge. 

2/20/2025 18:57:45 Sherri & Steven 
Erhart Parent/Community Recommended without 

reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 2 3 High 2 N/A 3 High 3 High 2 2 N/A 2 3 High Thank you for bringing cursive back to the curriculum. 

2/20/2025 19:00:20 Joe Crowther Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 2 3 High 3 High 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High N/A

2/20/2025 19:01:02 David Lee Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

It sounds like the 
information is 
interesting for 
students and 
makes them 
excited to learn 
more.

3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High The topics are incredible.  I love that it will challenge students that 
are high readers to grow.

2/20/2025 19:05:29 Meredith Dahl Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

From what I have 
(briefly) seen, this 
looks balanced 
and appropriate 
for all kinds of 
students with all 
kinds of interests!

3 High 3 High N/A 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

While I'm admittedly reluctant to answer any of these questions 
simply due to the fact that I haven't been able to *extensively* review 
the material (so sorry!), from what I've seen and asked about, this 
program looks absolutely fantastic. I'm very impressed by its well-
organized overall structure, the way it seems to ONLY 
introduce/practice ONE new concept at a time (this is something I'm 
passionate about; I don't respect material that thoughtlessly 
attempts to hurl ALL of its concepts at the students at once) and 
then builds on it, its respect for other cultures, and its balance of 
subject material. I'm very excited for my children to get to use this 
new program, and am reassured by the research and pilot-backed 
praise. Thank you for putting so much effort and research into 
finding and testing this program!

2/20/2025 19:07:15 brindean saltz Staff/Parent Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High I think there perfect!

2/20/2025 19:09:19 Lindsey Collins Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 2 2 2 3 High 2

Yes, the materials 
presented seem to 
be varied and 
interesting in a 
way that would be 
engaging to 
students.

2 3 High 2 2 2 2 N/A N/A N/A 2 3 High Teachers seem very passionate at about these materials which 
makes it exciting to see it used in the classroom.

2/20/2025 19:11:23 Cassandra Loffler Staff/Parent Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

Yes! Excellent 
variety and a great 
series of texts 
within a unit to 
support and 
engage students. 

3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

The resources are clear, easy to read, and have very clear directions. 
I like the guidance for scoring and obvious embedded supports that 
will allow teachers to measure and track student learning on a "by 
student, by target" basis. The assessments are SBA-alike and will 
prepare students for upper level state assessments. Great pick, 
friends! 

2/20/2025 19:13:22 Neili Marozzo Staff Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes! Yes! Yes! 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

I love that they are not only teaching excellent decoding skills to my 
child, but also developing a rich vocabulary and depth of knowledge 
in the Core Knowledge component.

2/20/2025 19:16:34 Ashley Robertson Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Absolutely 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Great choice 

2/20/2025 19:16:44 Rebecca Hintz Staff/Parent Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High No

2/20/2025 19:17:03 Lauren Wagner Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

Yes, the educators 
had raving reviews 
of their experience 
piloting the CKLA 
materials 

N/A N/A N/A 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High N/A 3 High I like how science and history are incorporated into the reading 
material

2/20/2025 19:17:46 Kasha Holverson Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Absolutely 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Make sure to send supplemental materials home to parents



Timestamp Your Name Parent/Community/Staff Recommendation

Has the teacher 
adequately laid 
out the standards 
information 
within the 
instructional 
material?

Does the material 
contain any of the 
following?

In light of these mature 
themes please indicate 
why you believe the 
material is still valuable 
as a teaching resource.

General 
Appearan

ce:

Readabilit
y of type:

Quality of 
paper and 

binding:

Appropria
teness of 
illustratio

ns:

Format 
and 

general 
organizati

on:

Has 
appropriat

e 
sequential 
developm

ent:

Provides 
varied 

teaching 
and 

learning 
strategies

:

Do the materials 
presented seem to be 
varied and interesting in 
a way that would be 
engaging to students?

Provides 
for 

measuring 
student 

achieveme
nt:

Provides 
clearly 

organized 
teacher 
edition:

Consistent 
with the 

Washingto
n State 

Learning 
Standards

Reflects 
respect for 

personal 
worth and 
life styles:

Aids in 
building 
positive 
attitudes 

and 
understan

ding:

Depicts 
cultural 

diversity:

Deals 
effectively 

with 
issues and 
problems:

Offers 
accurate 

and/or 
realistic 

treatment 
of subject:

Incorporat
es 

balanced 
viewpoints

:

Makes 
provision 

for 
distinguishi
ng between 

fact and 
opinion:

Stimulates 
critical 

thinking:
Any other comments about these materials:

2/20/2025 19:18:25 Karyn Mendel Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes

What mature 
themes? I think 
part of this 
question is missing 

3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High N/A 3 High Yes N/A 3 High N/A 3 High 3 High N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 3 High I don’t know enough about ALL of the material to answer all these 
questions properly. I just started looking at it 30 minutes ago. 

2/20/2025 19:19:24 Jordan Snyder Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Very excited about this curriculum 

2/20/2025 19:19:52 Thomas Parham Staff/Parent Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Absolutely 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Amazing scope and sequence!

2/20/2025 19:19:58 Chelsea Krohn Staff/Parent Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Amazing!

2/20/2025 19:20:29 Courtney Elizondo Staff/Parent Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

Very! Students are 
highly engaged 
because 
academic content 
is aligned with 
science and social 
studies. Educators 
are able to easily 
scaffold because 
of the layout of 
educational 
materials. All 
students have 
access to 
learning!

3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High
Students are engaged, learning rich tier 2 and 3 academic language, 
and will be better prepared for middle school and high school 
because of this knowledge based curriculum. 

2/20/2025 19:20:36 Amera Whitaker Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

For every grade 
level the material 
looked exciting 
and very 
interesting.

3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

Very excited about this new program. Every grade level had very 
interesting topics that will excite my children. Love that they'll be 
learning fun new content and not even realize they are growing their 
reading skills also.

2/20/2025 19:22:03 Rachelle Brown Staff Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High This will greatly benefit our most marginalized students.

2/20/2025 19:23:00 Kaylee Anderson Staff/Parent Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High So engaging! 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 2 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Just beyond excited to offer high level content to kids!

2/20/2025 19:26:52 Brittney Strebel Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High N/A 3 High N/A 3 High 3 High N/A 3 High 3 High I don’t want any social issues discussed in ELA. 

2/20/2025 21:51:21 Anonynous Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High No

2/20/2025 22:18:45 Crystalin Cutler Parent/Community Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

Yes. My son is in 
one of the pilot 
classrooms and 
he still talks about 
the unit on the 
human body. 

3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High The materials seem engaging and bring a new level of insight for the 
students. 

2/21/2025 6:39:48 Alicia Padvorac Parent/community 
Member

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes N/A N/A 3 High 3 High N/A 3 High 3 High 3 High N/A 3 High 3 High

The teachers were very invigorated by this new teaching material and 
excited about the progress their students are making. The kids that 
have used it are engaged and excited about it.

2/21/2025 7:09:04 Jon Padvorac Parent/community 
Member

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Nope

2/21/2025 12:56:34 Jackie Hendren Staff member Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes! 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

This curriculum is amazing! I wish my 1st grader started with it in 
kindergarten and I am so looking forward to my upcoming 
kindergartener to learn reading with it next year!

2/22/2025 20:53:08 Sarah Rehmke Parent/Community 
Member

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Na

2/24/2025 8:21:48 Crystal Hogg Staff with KSD 
student

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High No

2/24/2025 8:27:56 Jamie P Other Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Very engaging 3 High 3 High 3 High N/A 3 High 3 High 3 High N/A 3 High 3 High 3 High Looks good

2/24/2025 10:35:21 Melissa Sexton Parent/Community 
Member

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High None

2/24/2025 11:41:47 Jessica Farias Staff with KSD 
student

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

The materials fit 
with the specific 
age group as well 
as topics.

3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High N/a

2/24/2025 15:51:45 Kimberly 
Marqyardt

Staff with KSD 
student

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes! High level of 

learning expected! 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High I’m excited for the level of rigor with this new curriculum! 

2/25/2025 8:46:27 Mariela  Valencia Parent/Community 
Member

Recommended without 
reservation No None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

Yes I believe any 
student would find 
this material 
interesting. 

3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High I believe this materials would be great for students. 

2/25/2025 12:59:40 Amanda graves Parent/Community 
Member

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High None

2/25/2025 13:16:17 Anonnymous Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High N/A 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 2 N/A 3 High None

2/25/2025 14:29:12 nicole whitlow Staff with KSD 
student

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High they seem great and engaging

2/25/2025 15:30:50 Amye Kay Parent/Community 
Member

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High

I have taught this curriculum for 3 years in a previous district. I really 
liked the topic selections for each grade level, the instruction 
materials and the integrated writing. I liked the smaller readers as 
well.  

2/25/2025 17:08:03 Jessica Nunez Staff with KSD 
student

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 2 2 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes! 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Not at this time.

2/25/2025 17:46:23 Renae Yecha Staff with KSD 
student

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High RSD also adopted this curriculum in spring 2024.  It has a wide 

variety of quality materials.

2/25/2025 18:21:52 Cheryl P Spradling Staff member Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 2 3 High 3 High 2 3 High 3 High Yes 2 2 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 2 3 High 2 3 High 3 High None



Timestamp Your Name Parent/Community/Staff Recommendation

Has the teacher 
adequately laid 
out the standards 
information 
within the 
instructional 
material?

Does the material 
contain any of the 
following?

In light of these mature 
themes please indicate 
why you believe the 
material is still valuable 
as a teaching resource.

General 
Appearan

ce:

Readabilit
y of type:

Quality of 
paper and 

binding:

Appropria
teness of 
illustratio

ns:

Format 
and 

general 
organizati

on:

Has 
appropriat

e 
sequential 
developm

ent:

Provides 
varied 

teaching 
and 

learning 
strategies

:

Do the materials 
presented seem to be 
varied and interesting in 
a way that would be 
engaging to students?

Provides 
for 

measuring 
student 

achieveme
nt:

Provides 
clearly 

organized 
teacher 
edition:

Consistent 
with the 

Washingto
n State 

Learning 
Standards

Reflects 
respect for 

personal 
worth and 
life styles:

Aids in 
building 
positive 
attitudes 

and 
understan

ding:

Depicts 
cultural 

diversity:

Deals 
effectively 

with 
issues and 
problems:

Offers 
accurate 

and/or 
realistic 

treatment 
of subject:

Incorporat
es 

balanced 
viewpoints

:

Makes 
provision 

for 
distinguishi
ng between 

fact and 
opinion:

Stimulates 
critical 

thinking:
Any other comments about these materials:

2/27/2025 15:32:45 Trish Mears Parent/Community 
Member

Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High The better if the two options 

3/3/2025 21:57:03 Trisha Other Recommended without 
reservation Yes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes N/A 3 High 3 High N/A N/A 3 High N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Most of these questions did not seem relevant for evaluating the 
quality of an ELA curriculum. What I (and I assume many parents and 
teachers) care most about is that this curriculum is well researched 
and has a solid evidence base showing that it helps all learners 
develop their reading skills. Thank goodness that Amplify CKLA 
does, but it would be nice to see more questions about whether we 
think this material will help more students to develop adequate, or 
even excel, in ELA skills compared to what is being achieved with the 
current curriculum. An education expert I consulted with confirmed 
that this is one of the best curriculums out there so great job KSD 
narrowing down the field to this option! 

3/5/2025 12:32:03 Jen Woods Parent/Community MemberRecommended without reservationYes None of these 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Yes 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High 3 High Not at this time



[1] Responder updated this value.



 

 

• Go to: https://amplify.com/ckla-3e-program-review/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Password: TheNextChapter 

 
 

• Once logged in, all teacher and student materials are available for review: 

  

 

 

 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Famplify.com%2Fckla-3e-program-review%2F&data=05%7C02%7Calyssa.sthilaire%40ksd.org%7C6cb502a653d44473fc7a08dd4c7205a5%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638750774805405635%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=H2pgQn52XTBVMXyykD%2FVduhRt2XDCjbVt%2FSHW%2BM0yd8%3D&reserved=0

	03 12 25 Agenda
	CONSENT ITEMS
	School Board Study Session Minutes 02 26 25
	School Board Meeting Minutes 02 26 25
	Personnel Actions - Certificated
	Personnel Actions - Classified
	Personnel Actions - Extracurricular
	Budget Status Report Ending December 31, 2024
	Payroll and Vouchers Endng December 31, 2024
	Removal and Authorization of Account Signers

	REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS
	Preliminary Budget 2025-26
	Academic Progress Update
	Preliminary Recommendation: K-5 English Language Arts Materials
	ELA (English) Curriculum Adoption Recommendation Form (Response) - Form Responses 1
	Amplify CKLA Log in Info





